
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         March 2, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – MARCH 2, 2020 

 
Board Room                Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal Matters  
(SCHEDULED ONE HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 6 P.M.) 
 
INVOCATION – Rick Gibson – Copper Ridge Baptist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
1. Harry Ferguson – RC Board of Supervisors - Service Award 

 
PRESENTATION 
 

1. Jess Powers – RC Emergency Management – RC Flood Declaration…………A-1 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………B-1 

 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         March 2, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of February 3, 2020 
b. Unapproved minutes of February 19, 2020           

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration. 
 

CUMBERLAND PLATEAU REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
David Eaton    Concurrent with Term 
 
CUMBERLAND MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY SERVICE BOARD 
 
Steve Givens (Resigned)            3-Year Term 
 
RC Tourism Advisory Committee   
 
Brandon Blevins (Resigned)       4-Year Term (Term Ends 6/30/23)   
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS.  
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS………………………………………..C-1 
 

1. CPRWMA Transfer Station Manpower Agreement 
 

2. CIFA “Project Grow” Participation Agreement 
 

3. RC Personnel Policies & Procedures 
 

4. RC BOS Honaker Property Transfer to RC School Board 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. U.S. Census Initial Boundary Validation Program (BVP)………………………...D-1 
 
2. RC Electoral Board – Cleveland Precinct Voting Location Change……………D-2 

 
3. County Registrar’s Office Computers……………………………………………….D-3 

 
4. FY 20/21 Budget Committee Workshop (3/18/20)………………………………….D-4 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         March 2, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 
REQUESTS 

  
1. CPPD Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Adoption….………………………………..D-5 

 
2. DHCD Belfast Water Project Administrative Agreement…………………………D-6 

 
3. RC BOS & RC PSA Service Agreement……………………………………………...D-7 

 
4. DHCD Virginia Community Development Block Grant Resolution……………..D-8 

 
5. Honaker Red Bud Festival Donation…………………………………………………D-9 

 
6. Travel Requests……………………….…………………………………………………D-10 

 
MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………E 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….F 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... G 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….H 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..I 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………J 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...L 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….M 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..N   

 



CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A) (3), (5), (7), (8). 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace - 

Lou Ann Wallace - 

Carl Rhea - 

Steve Breeding - 

David Eaton - 

Rebecca Dye - 

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors Information Item 
137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

       Meeting:   3/2/20         6:00 PM 
 

 
Acknowledgements 
 

1.   Harry Ferguson – RC Board of Supervisors - Service Award 
 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

No Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
• Award  



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 3/2/20           6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations 
 
1. Jess Powers – RC Emergency Management – RC Flood Declaration…………A-1 

 
 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Code of Virginia
Title 44. Military and Emergency Laws
Chapter 3.2. Emergency Services and Disaster Law
    
§ 44-146.21. Declaration of local emergency
  
A. A local emergency may be declared by the local director of emergency management with the
consent of the governing body of the political subdivision. In the event the governing body
cannot convene due to the disaster or other exigent circumstances, the director, or in his
absence, the deputy director, or in the absence of both the director and deputy director, any
member of the governing body may declare the existence of a local emergency, subject to
confirmation by the governing body at its next regularly scheduled meeting or at a special
meeting within 45 days of the declaration, whichever occurs first. The governing body, when in
its judgment all emergency actions have been taken, shall take appropriate action to end the
declared emergency.
  
B. A declaration of a local emergency as defined in § 44-146.16 shall activate the local Emergency
Operations Plan and authorize the furnishing of aid and assistance thereunder.
  
C. Whenever a local emergency has been declared, the director of emergency management of
each political subdivision or any member of the governing body in the absence of the director, if
so authorized by the governing body, may control, restrict, allocate or regulate the use, sale,
production and distribution of food, fuel, clothing and other commodities, materials, goods,
services and resource systems which fall only within the boundaries of that jurisdiction and
which do not impact systems affecting adjoining or other political subdivisions, enter into
contracts and incur obligations necessary to combat such threatened or actual disaster, protect
the health and safety of persons and property and provide emergency assistance to the victims of
such disaster, and proceed without regard to time-consuming procedures and formalities
prescribed by law (except mandatory constitutional requirements) pertaining to the performance
of public work, entering into contracts, incurring of obligations, employment of temporary
workers, rental of equipment, purchase of supplies and materials, and other expenditures of
public funds, provided such funds in excess of appropriations in the current approved budget,
unobligated, are available. Whenever the Governor has declared a state of emergency, each
political subdivision affected may, under the supervision and control of the Governor or his
designated representative, enter into contracts and incur obligations necessary to combat such
threatened or actual disaster beyond the capabilities of local government, protect the health and
safety of persons and property and provide emergency assistance to the victims of such disaster.
In exercising the powers vested under this section, under the supervision and control of the
Governor, the political subdivision may proceed without regard to time-consuming procedures
and formalities prescribed by law pertaining to public work, entering into contracts, incurring of
obligations, employment of temporary workers, rental of equipment, purchase of supplies and
materials, levying of taxes, and appropriation and expenditure of public funds.
  
D. No interjurisdictional agency or official thereof may declare a local emergency. However, an
interjurisdictional agency of emergency management shall provide aid and services to the
affected political subdivision authorizing such assistance in accordance with the agreement as a
result of a local or state declaration.
  
E. None of the provisions of this chapter shall apply to the Emergency Disaster Relief provided by

1 2/15/2020

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/44-146.16/
Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Underline

Lonzo Lester
Underline



the American Red Cross or other relief agency solely concerned with the provision of service at
no cost to the citizens of the Commonwealth.
  
1973, c. 260; 1974, c. 4; 1975, c. 11; 1976, c. 594; 1986, c. 24; 1990, c. 945; 1994, c. 75;2000, c. 309
;2016, c. 555.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this section
may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters whose
provisions have expired.
  

2 2/15/2020

http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?941+ful+CHAP0075
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?941+ful+CHAP0075
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0309
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0309
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?161+ful+CHAP0555


 
RUSSELL COUNTY  

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
94 Russell Street ~ P. O. Box 911 ~ Lebanon, VA 24266   

 T: (276) 889-8247 ~ F: (276) 889-8248 
Mobile: (276) 701-9775 ~ Dispatch: (276) 889-8033 

 
RUSSELL COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY DECLARATION 

 
February 6 - 24, 2020 

 
 
RESOLUTION:    
RUSSELL COUNTY DECLARATION OF LOCAL EMERGENCY 
Due to Devastating County-wide Flooding 
 
WHEREAS, On February 4, 2020, 3:48 p.m., the National Weather Service (NWS), Morristown, 
TN issued a Flash Flood Watch for southwest Virginia potentially producing heavy rainfall of 2 
to 4 inches; and 
 
WHEREAS, Rain started on February 4, 2020 and finally subsided on February 13, 2020 
saturating Russell County with 7.69 inches of rainfall causing county-wide flooding of small 
streams, main river, roadways, and low-lying areas; washing out driveways, culverts, and 
bridges; isolating residents from main roadways, work, school, emergency services and 
communities; and triggering numerous mud/rock slides; and 
 
WHEREAS, At 11:15 a.m., on February 6, 2020, the Director and Assistant Director of Russell 
County Emergency Management declared a local emergency due to the widespread rain and 
devastating floods in Russell County; and 
 
WHEREAS, Russell County resulting flood damage assessments for private properties are 
estimated to be $309,824.00 and for public properties of $381,930.00 for an estimated total cost 
to repair/replace flood impacted properties and infrastructure of $691,754.00 in Russell County; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Russell County Director and Assistant Director of Emergency Management 
resolved the local disaster declaration at 5:00 p.m., on February 24, 2020 to initiate the recover 
process; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Russell does hereby find that due to 
county-wide flooding;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED, at a regular meeting of the Russell County Board 
of Supervisors held this 2nd day of March, 2020, the following resolution was adopted;  
 



IT IS FURTHERED PROCLAIMED AND ORDERED, that an emergency did exist throughout 
Russell County from February 6 through February 24, 2020 due to county-wide flooding;  
 
IT IS FURTHERED PROCLAIMED AND ORDERED, that the existence of said emergency 
activated the powers, functions, and duties of the Director, Assistant Director, and Coordinator 
of Emergency Management and the County of Russell shall be prescribed by the Virginia 
Disaster and Emergency Management Laws, §44-146.19, and ordinances, resolutions, and 
adopted Emergency Operations Plan of the County of Russell in order to protect life, property, 
infrastructure and mitigate the effects of said emergency;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Russell County Board of Supervisors does 
hereby declare that an emergency did exist throughout Russell County from February 6 through 
February 24, 2020, and activated duties were executed in accordance with the adopted Russell 
County Emergency Operations Plan, July 2016, and as prescribed in the Code of Virginia 
Sections §44-146.19 and 44-146.21 to protect life, property, infrastructure, and to mitigate the 
effects of the emergency. 
 
ADOPTED this 2nd day of March 2020.  
 
 ATTEST:         RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
Recorded Vote:  
 
Moved by:     
 
Seconded by:     
 
Yeas:    
 
Nays:    
 
 
              
         Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 
         County of Russell Virginia 
 
 



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

           Meeting: 3/2/20       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• February 3, 2020 Board Minutes 
• February 19, 2020 Board Minutes 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



February 03, 2020 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, February 3, 
2020 beginning at 5:00 pm with Executive (closed) Session followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 pm 
at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
None 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(5) of the Code of Virginia to discuss 
legal matters pursuant to 2.2-3712(A), (3), (7) and (8). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:   Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

CERTIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 



the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 
Invocation by Danny Breeding, Bradshaw Memorial Church followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

Acknowledgement 

The Board of Supervisors recognized Phoenix Fleming, a student at Lebanon Middle School for her 
donation of food to the Russell County Animal Shelter. 

Presentations 

Josh Horner, Russell County Animal Control and Dr. Michelle Meister gave reports on the animal shelter. 

Missy Carter, Russell County Community Work Program updated the board on the activities and 
projects.  She also commented that the trash problem in the county is very concerning. 

Rob Goldsmith, People Inc.  gave a brief overview of the yearly report. 

Toby Edwards, Cumberland Plateau Waste Authority updated the board on the waste authority and the 
proposed user agreement. 

 



PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE NOISE ORDINANCE 

Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for (2) two consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 
held on the Noise Ordinance.  The Chair opened the public hearing for comments. 

Several citizens spoke concerning the ordinance: 

Tommy Hess, Shawn Vance, Nathan Kiser, Daniel Meade, James Hamilton, Jim Lyttle, Michelle  
Vance, Jody Hicks, Mark Rose and Jay McConnell. 

The main concerns were the lack of definition, too vague, overreaching government and the need for 
more specific language.  

The Chair closed the public hearing. 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE LITTER ORDINANCE 

Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for (2) two consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 
held on the Litter Ordinance.  The Chair opened the public hearing for comments. 

Several citizens spoke concerning the ordinance: 

Doug Mays, Daniel Meade, Nathan Kiser, Jim Gwyn, Jim Lyttle and Charlie Hess. 

The main concerns were the trash problem increasing, lack of enforcement, the need for a litter control 
officer, more communication between the board and citizens and transparency. 

The Chair closed the public hearing. 

APPROVAL TO TABLE THE NOISE ORDINANCE INDEFINITELY 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
table the Noise Ordinance indefinitely and give the public ample notice before another public hearing is 
held. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE LITTER ORDINANCE 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Litter Ordinance that was previously approved in 2011 with no changes. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
New Business 

APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 13, 2020 MINUTES 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the January 13, 2020 minutes as presented and dispense with the reading thereof. 



The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea and Tim Lovelace 
 

APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 21, 2020 MINUTES 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the January 21, 2020 minutes as presented and dispense with the reading thereof. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace and Carl Rhea 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,101,152.06 including reoccurring and witholdings. 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
Charlie Hess, Lebanon stated that we need strict enforcement for littering. 
 
Kelly McBride Delph, RCPL announced that Friday, February 21, 2020 the Honaker Library will have a 
DEQ citizens water monitoring training session. 
 
 Shawn Vance, Drill has many questions about the recycling project. 
 
Tommy Hess, Swords Creek asked that the County help the Friends of Honaker with projects for children 
in the Honaker area.  The county needs more litter control enforcement. 
 
Mark Rose, thanked the Board for being open-minded with regard to citizen concerns. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE CPRWMA USER AGREEMENT 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority user agreement. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 
The County Administrator introduced Heather Powers, our new Tourism Coordinator. 
 
 



APPROVAL TO CONSIDER THE RUSSELL COUNTY PROJECT MANAGEMENT CONTRACT ON MARCH 02, 
2020 

 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
consider the approval of the Russell County Project Management Contract at the March 02, 2020 
meeting. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF VIRGINIA NEXT GENERATION 911 PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE LETTER 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Virginia Next Generation 911 Proposal Acceptance Letter (PAL). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF MUTUAL AID AGREEMENTS WITH SCOTT, DICKENSON, SMYTH, TAZEWELL, 
WASHINGTON AND BUCHANAN COUNTY 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve mutual aid agreements as corrected between the Russell County Sheriff’s Department and the 
following counties:  Scott, Dickenson, Smyth, Tazewell, Washington and Buchanan. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE G3 INITIATIVE  
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to a 
approve a Resolution of Support for the G3 Initiative (” Get a Skill, Get a Job, Give Back”). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request for the building official. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 



 
APPROVAL OF A DEQ CITIZENS WATER MONITORING GRANT 

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve and appropriate a Department of Environmental Quality Citizens Water Monitoring Grant for 
the Russell County Public Library in the amount of $3056.852. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
The Chair appointed Steve Breeding and Tim Lovelace to serve on the Insurance Committee. 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________                                                            __________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                              Chairperson 
 
  



February 19, 2020 

A special called meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Wednesday, February 
19, 2020 at 6:00 pm in the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
 
None 
 
Invocation by Rebecca Dye, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda with the addition of Executive (closed) Session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian   
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF AN INTERIM CONTRACT WITH SKANSKA USA BUILDING, INC. 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve an interim contract with Skanska USA Building, Inc. for the courthouse renovation project 
($60,000). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 



APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE COUNTY COURTHOUSE PROJECT RENOVATIONS TO BE 
A QUALIFYING PROJECT UNDER PPEA 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution Declaring County Courthouse Renovations are a qualifying project under the 
Public-Private Education Facilities and Infrastructure Act of 2002 and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
 
The vote was: 
 Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian   
 Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF An RFP FOR THE DESIGN-BUILD OF LEBANON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL WALL REPAIR 
PROJECT 

 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a Request for Proposals for the Design-Build Construction of Lebanon Elementary School Wall 
Repair Project. 
 
The vote was 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened citizens comment period. 
 
Larry Hughes, Lebanon made some suggestions and comments on courthouse renovation project. 
 
The Chair closed citizens comment period. 
 

APPROVAL OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session to discuss legal matters pursuant to 2.2-3712(A), (5) and (7) of the 
Code of Virginia. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TOP RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian   
Nay:  None 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 



Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 

APPROVAL TO AJDOURN 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian   
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________                                                    ____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                               Chairperson 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

       Meeting: 3/2/20      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s February 2020 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s February 2020 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s February 2020 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• February 2020 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





















 
Board of Supervisors      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 3/2/20        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Appointments 
 
CUMBERLAND PLATEAU REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
David Eaton          Concurrent with Term 
 
CUMBERLAND MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY SERVICE BOARD 
 
Steve Givens (Resigned)            3-Year Term 
 
RC Tourism Advisory Committee   
 
Brandon Blevins (Resigned)       4-Year Term (Term Ends 6/30/23) 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Board Discretion. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Motion Required.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 















                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

          Meeting: 3/2/20               6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 

 
 

1. CPRWMA Transfer Station User Agreement 
 

2. CIFA “Project Grow” Participation Agreement 
 

3. RC Personnel Policies & Procedures 
 

4. RC BOS Honaker Property Transfer to RC School Board 
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Participation Agreement Between 
Buchanan, Russell and Tazewell Counties 
Page 1 of 6 

REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY   
PROJECT GROW PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT, dated this the 2nd day of March, 2020 by and between THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF BUCHANAN COUNTY, VIRGINIA, (hereinafter “Buchanan 

County),  THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA, (hereinafter 

“Russell County”), AND THE BOARD OF THE SUPERVISORS OF TAZEWELL COUNTY, 
VIRGINIA, (hereinafter “Tazewell County”) political subdivisions of the Commonwealth of 

Virginia, herein collectively (“the Participants”),   
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 WHEREAS, the Participants acknowledge that without cooperative economic 

development and investment their respective localities’ economies will suffer the loss of 

opportunity; and 

 WHEREAS, the Participants have reached an agreement with a Company sponsoring a 

private business initiative to create a hemp processing facility in the Cumberland region for the 

purpose of creating jobs and economic development (hereinafter “the Project"); and 

 WHEREAS, the company carrying out the Project has demonstrated to the Participants 

that its total private investment in the Project will be in excess of FIVE MILLION DOLLARS 

($5,000,000.00); and 

 WHEREAS, the company carrying out the Project has requested FOUR MILLION 

DOLLARS ($4,000,000.00) from the Participants to help fund the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, the Participants desire to assist the Project in the creation of at least 52 jobs 

and over FIVE MILLION DOLLARS ($5,000,000.00) worth of taxable assets in the Cumberland 

region; and 

 WHEREAS, the Participants desire to establish a means by which they can jointly 

contribute to the Project and jointly reap the benefits of the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, the Participants have agreed that each Participant shall assume a 

proportionate amount of the obligations owed to the Virginia Coalfield Economic Development 

Authority (“VCEDA”)  and the Tobacco Indemnification and Community Revitalization 

Commission (“the Tobacco Commission”) regarding the Project in exchange for a share in the 

tax revenue generated by the Project, pursuant to such terms as are hereinafter set forth; and 



 
Participation Agreement Between 
Buchanan, Russell and Tazewell Counties 
Page 2 of 6 

 WHEREAS, the Participants desire to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of 

establishing the parties’ respective rights and responsibilities with respect to their contributions 

to the Project and the revenues resulting from the Project. 

 NOW THEREFORE, in order to promote economic development of the region, the 

parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I:  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 The Project shall include a facility to be located in the Hansonville area of Russell 

County, Virginia. (the “host county”).  The Project shall be generally as described in the attached 

Exhibit A.   

 For purposes of this Agreement the business entity or entities constructing, owning, or 

operating the Project are referred to herein as "the Company". All facilities constructed and 

owned by the Company, which directly or indirectly contribute to the Project, are collectively 

included within the definition of "the Project".  

 

ARTICLE II:  PARTICIPANT CONTRIBUTION 
 The Participants agree to contribute to the Project by passing resolutions for moral 

obligations regarding the funds received by VCEDA and the Tobacco Commission. The Russell 

County Board of Supervisors shall pass a resolution for a moral obligation for SEVENTY 

PERCENT (70%) of the VCEDA Funds, the Buchanan County shall pass a resolution for a 

moral obligation of FIFTEEN PERCENT (15%) of the VCEDA Funds, and the Tazewell County  

shall pass a resolution for a moral obligation of FIFTEEN PERCENT (15%) of the VCEDA 

Funds. The Obligation to repay funds received by the Tobacco Commission shall be divided as 

follows: The Russell County shall pass a resolution for a moral obligation of FORTY PERCENT 

(40%) of the Tobacco Commission Funds, Buchanan County shall pass a resolution for moral 

obligation of  THIRTY PERCENT (30%) of the Tobacco Commission Funds, and Tazewell 

County shall pass a resolution for a moral obligation of THIRTY PERCENT (30%) of the 

Tobacco Commission Funds. 

 If a Participant does not satisfy their Project Loan Obligations pursuant to this Article, 

such Participant shall not receive any Project Revenue. 

 

 
 



 
Participation Agreement Between 
Buchanan, Russell and Tazewell Counties 
Page 3 of 6 

ARTICLE III:  TAX REVENUE CONTRIBUTION 

 As consideration to Participants who contribute to the Project as above described, the 

host county agrees to share the tax revenues paid by the Company to the locality where the 

Project is located, and then paid to the Participants, in the relative proportions as hereinafter set 

forth.   

 

ARTICLE  VI:  PROJECT REVENUES 
 Revenue derived from the Project shall include all tax revenues, including but not limited 

to real and personal property taxes, paid by the Company to the locality with taxing jurisdiction, 

wherein the Project is located.  All revenues from the Project shall be referred to herein as 

"Project Revenue".  Project Revenue shall consist of (1) Net Project Loan Revenue and (2) Net 

Project Tax Revenue.  Such Project Revenues shall be distributed only as set forth herein.   

 A. Net Project Revenue 
 All Project Revenues received by the host county as above described and all proceeds 

from any collections from the enforcement of the collection of any unpaid taxes shall constitute 

Gross Project Revenue. In the event of default by the Company, any reasonable cost incurred 

by the the host county in collecting Project Revenues from the Company shall be deducted from 

the Gross Project Loan Revenue. Also, three percent (3%) of the Project Revenues shall be 

deducted from Gross Project Revenue to provide funding to the Authority for its administrative 

expenses. The remainder of the Gross Project Revenue shall constitute Net Project Revenue. 

  
 B. Distribution of Net Project Revenue 
 The Participants shall divide all Net Project Revenue into the following shares:   

 Buchanan County, Virginia  30% 

 Russell County, Virginia  40% 

 Tazewell County, Virginia  30% 

The host county shall hold such funds in separate accounts for each of the Participants.  

As of January 15 of each year, the host county shall distribute to each Participant the balance of 

their Project Revenue account.   

 

ARTICLE  VII:  LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

 No Participant shall be responsible to contribute any amount to the Project other than 

the contributions herein expressly set forth, nor shall any Participant be liable to any third party 



 
Participation Agreement Between 
Buchanan, Russell and Tazewell Counties 
Page 4 of 6 

beneficiaries of this Participation Agreement other than the obligations herein expressly set 

forth, whether intended or unintended. 

 

ARTICLE VIII:  APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT 
 This Participation Agreement shall not be enforceable against any Participant until: 

(1) Each Participant's governing body has approved this Participation Agreement by vote 

of its governing body at a public meeting.; and 

(2) Evidence of such approval in the form of a written resolution certified by the Clerk of 

the Board of the Participant's governing body is attached hereto; and 

(3) The Chairmen or Chairpersons of the Participant's respective Boards of Supervisors 

and their County Administrators and the Authority's Chairman or Chairperson all have executed 

this Participation Agreement.   

 

ARTICLE  IX:  MODIFICATION 
This Participation Agreement may only be modified by a writing approved by all 

Participants' respective governing bodies, by vote at a public meeting evidenced by a certified 

copy of a written resolution of each Participant's governing body.  

 
ARTICLE  X:  WITHDRAWAL AS A PARTICIPATING JUSRIDICTION 
 Participants may not withdraw from this Agreement after approval of this Agreement by 

all Participants, unless the other Participants unanimously agree, by vote of their respective 

governing bodies at a public meeting.   

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Governing Bodies identified, by authorized action, have 

caused this Participation Agreement to be executed and their respective seals affixed hereto 

and attested by their respective clerks or secretaries commencing the 2nd day of March, 2020. 

 
      
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
      
 



 
Participation Agreement Between 
Buchanan, Russell and Tazewell Counties 
Page 5 of 6 

      BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
      BUCHANAN COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 
 
     By: ___________________________________(SEAL) 
      James Carroll Branham, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
____________________________ 
Lee Moise, County Attorney for 
Buchanan County, Virginia 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
      RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 
 
     By: ___________________________________(SEAL) 
      Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
____________________________ 
M. Katherine Patton, County Attorney 
For Russell County, Virginia 
 
 
 
 
 
       
 
 
 



 
Participation Agreement Between 
Buchanan, Russell and Tazewell Counties 
Page 6 of 6 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
      TAZEWELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 
 
     By: ___________________________________(SEAL) 
      Charles A. Stacy, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
____________________________ 
Chase D. Collins, County Attorney 
For Tazewell County, Virginia 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       
 

 



 

Board of Supervisors Action Item D-1 – D-10 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 3/2/20         6:00 PM 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for March 2020: 

 
REPORTS 

 
1. U.S. Census Initial Boundary Validation Program (BVP)………………………...D-1 
 
2. RC Electoral Board – Cleveland Precinct Voting Location Change……………D-2 

 
3. County Registrar’s Office Computers……………………………………………….D-3 

 
4. FY 20/21 Budget Committee Workshop (3/18/20)………………………………….D-4 
 
 
REQUESTS 

  
1. CPPD Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Adoption….………………………………..D-5 

 
2. DHCD Belfast Water Project Administrative Agreement…………………………D-6 

 
3. RC BOS & RC PSA Service Agreement……………………………………………...D-7 

 
4. DHCD Virginia Community Development Block Grant Resolution……………..D-8 

 
5. Honaker Red Bud Festival Donation…………………………………………………D-9 

 
6. Travel Requests……………………….…………………………………………………D-10 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
• Various 

 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


BVP-L1-1 
(10·2019) 

OMB Control No.: 0607-0151 
Expiration Date: 11-30-2021 

January 2020 

Rebecca Dye 
Chairwoman 
Board of Supervisors 
PO Box 1208 
Lebanon, VA 24266-1208 

A Message from the Director, U.S. Census Bureau: 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
U.S. Census Bureau 
Office of the Director 
Washington, DC 20233-0001 Mail Stop 7400 

Sequence: 022390-005792 
BASID:25116700000 

The U.S. Census Bureau is now conducting the Initial Boundary Validation Program (BVP). The Initial BVP is 
your opportunity, as the Highest Elected Official, to review the Census Bureau's boundary data to ensure the 
Census Bureau has the correct legal boundary, name, and status for your government. The Census Bureau 
uses this boundary information to tabulate data for the 2020 Census. 

The Initial BVP package includes an Initial BVP form and paper maps, or a CD/DVD containing maps, for your 
government. The maps should reflect the legal boundary for your government effective on January 1, 2020. 
Please review our depiction of your legal boundary for accuracy and return the completed 
Initial BVP form by March 1, 2020. Return the completed Initial BVP form by email at 
<geo.bas@census.gov>, by fax (1-800-972-5652), or using the enclosed postage-paid envelope. 

The Initial BVP is conducted in parallel with the 2020 Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS). If any 
information is incorrect, please work with your BAS contact to submit corrections. Information for your BAS 
contact is printed below. If boundary updates are submitted to the BAS by March 1, 2020, you will have an 
additional opportunity to verify your government's boundaries prior to the final data tabulation for the 2020 
Census. Changes received after March 1, 2020 will be used to correct the boundary, but we will not have 
sufficient time to send you an updated map before final data tabulations. 

BAS Contact Information 

Our records indicate your BAS contact is: 

Name: Lonzo Lester 
Position: County Administrator 
Department: Administration 
Mailing Address: PO Box 1208 

Lebanon, VA 24266-1208 
Phone: 276-889-8000 
Email: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

Please contact the Census Bureau with questions about the BVP or BAS through email at 
<geo.bas@census.gov>, by phone at 1-800-972-5651, or visit our website at 
<https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/bas/information/bvp.html>. Thank you for your participation 
in the Initial BVP. 

Enclosures 

census· 
2020 census.gov 





We estimate that completing this program will take a total of 2 hours on average. Send comments regarding this burden 
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to 
<geo.bas@census.gov>. This collection has been approved by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB). The eight 
digit OMB approval number that appears at the upper left of the letter confirms this approval. If this number were not 
displayed, we could not conduct this survey. The Census Bureau conducts this program under the legal authority of the 
Title 13 U.S. Code, Section 6. 

BVP-F1-I (10-10-2019) 



Boundary and Annexation 
Survey (BAS) 

BAS Overview 
Every year, the U.S. Census Bureau conducts the BAS to collect information 
about selected legally defined geographic areas. The BAS provides tribal, 
state, and local governments an opportunity to review the Census Bureau's 
boundary data to ensure the Census Bureau has the correct legal boundary, 
name, and status information. 

During the BAS, governments can report legal boundary 
changes, such as incorporations, disincorporations, ~ ILj=i 
annexations, and deannexations. Governments can also ~ i 
update boundaries, features, and landmarks for: ;J:._ 

• Cities, towns, boroughs, and villages ( incorporated places). ~ 
• Townships and towns (minor civil divisions). Em 
• Counties (or county equivalents). 
• Consolidated cities. 
• Roads and other applicable features. 

Benefits of BAS Participation 
The Census Bureau uses legal boundaries collected through the BAS to 
tabulate data for the decennial census. 

Responding to the BAS ensures that tribal, state, and local govern
ments have the most accurate boundary data available for the 
tabulation of decennial census housing and population counts. This 
data is the base for ongoing programs such as the American 
Community Survey and Population Estimates Program. Government 
agencies and other groups use this tabulated data to allocate more 
than $675 bill ion in federal fund ing to communities across the country. 
Legal boundary data is also made publicly available and is used by 
federal agencies, researchers, and the public. Participation in the BAS 
ensures that governments receive the funds for which they are entitled 
and have the best data available for decision-making processes. 

Accurate boundary records directly affect 
the quality of life in your community. 

Accurate boundaries allow 
us to count your community's 
residents accurately. 

censu1s· 
-----•Bureau 

U.S. Department of Commerce 
U.S. CENSUS BUREAU 

census.gov 

ti ti ti 



The Boundary Validation Program (BVP) 
and Its Relation to the BAS 
The Census Bureau is conducting the BVP in parallel with the 2020 BAS. 
For the BVP, highest elected officials (HEOs) are asked to review and 
confirm their government's boundary, legal name, and status information. 
The HEOs are instructed to work with their BAS contact to report any 
corrections through the 2020 BAS. Visit <www.census.gov/programs 
-surveys/bas/information/bvp.html> for more information on the BVP. 

Responding to the BAS is easy. 
The Census Bureau provides multiple free, user-friendly methods for the BAS 
contact to report boundary corrections through participation in the BAS. 

Paper option 

Participants can request free paper maps and annotation materials from the 
BAS Web site. 

Basic digital option 

The Geographic Update Partnership Software (GUPS) is a free, customized 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) tool. It was specifically developed for 
people who do not have geographic training or are not experienced GIS users. 

Advanced digital option 

Experienced GIS users have the opportunity to download shapefiles from the 
BAS Web site and make updates using their own GIS software (e.g ., ArcGIS). 

Will the Census Bureau contact my 

government for the BAS program? 
The Census Bureau will send the BAS Annual 
Response e-mail to key contacts for each government 
every year. This includes: 

• The government's HEO, such as the mayor or 
county executive. 

• A GIS staff, planner, clerk, or other contact. 

Relevant state-level official. 

Version 4, 72/78/2079 



Boundary Validation 
Program 

What is the 2020 Boundary 
Validation Program (BVP)? 
The BVP provides Tribal Chairs (TCs) and 
Highest Elected Officials (HEOs) of eligible tribal, 
state, and local governments a final opportunity to 
ensure the U.S. Census Bureau has the correct 
legal boundary, name, and status for their 
government. The Census Bureau will use this 
information to tabulate data for the 2020 Census. 

The BVP validates the creation, dissolution, and changes 
in boundaries for: 
• All federally recognized tribes with reservations and/or off-reservation trust land. 
• All actively functioning counties or county equivalents. 
• Incorporated places (including consolidated cities). 
• All functioning minor civil divisions. 
• Municipios, barrios, barrio-pueblos and subbarrios in Puerto Rico. 

How does the BVP relate to Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS)? 
The BVP is conducted every (10) years to provide TCs and HEOs the opportunity to 
review the boundary data collected during the BAS. The program is administered in two 
phases (Initial BVP and Final BVP) and runs in parallel with the 2020 BAS. TCs and 
HEOs will receive BVP materials approximately (2) weeks after the BAS contact 
receives the 2020 BAS annual response e-mail or letter. This provides TCs and HEOs an 
opportunity to review their legal boundary to verify or provide corrections prior to the 
2020 Census. If boundary corrections are required, TCs and HEOs are instructed to 
work with their BAS contact to provide updates through the 2020 BAS. 

How does the BVP benefit you? 
The U.S. Census Bureau uses legal boundaries collected through the BAS to tabulate 
data for the 2020 Census. 

Responding to the BVP ensures that tribal, state, and local governments have the most 
accurate boundary data available for the tabulation of the 2020 Census housing and 
population counts. This data is the base for ongoing programs such as the American 
Community Survey and Population Estimates Program. Government agencies and 
other groups use this tabulated data to allocate $675 billion of government funds to 
communities across the country. Legal boundary data is also made publicly available 
and is used by federal agencies, researchers, and the public. 

'\'(1111 p!.J llC ip1.\lt>J1 Il l \ht [31:,t:; 

li e ii * Ilic· c~1· 1 1~ 1 1~ H11(·f·11 
((>Jo\i l>!J(·\(>J>INil11(.,('( ll1i:IC 

(i f.\(., wh1c-! 1 1i l1 (· ( II\' 1-lit·c-tto thl 
c'J"i·l llv (11 ,1 11(: 11 1 )'<0 111 <t>1,,1 1n1111h1• 

censuts· 
------ Bureau 

f: ,;: i1C>W1 

ll l1 l•l•l\\1'f', 

U.S. Department of Commerce 
U.S. CENSUS BUREAU 

census.gov 



How to participate? 
The BVP is conducted in two phases, Initial BVP and Final BVP. During 
each of these phases, TCs and HEOs are instructed to work with their BAS 
contact to review and update their government's boundary, name, and status 
information. TCs and HEOs do not need to register to participate in BVP. The 
materials will be provided automatically. 

Initial BVP 
The Initial BVP materials include an Initial BVP letter, form, and paper maps or a 
CD/DVD containing PDF maps. The maps should reflect the legal boundary for the 
government effective on January 1, 2020. TCs and HEOs are instructed to review the 
Census Bureau's depiction of the legal boundary for accuracy and to return the 
completed Initial BVP form by March 1, 2020. 

If the information is correct, no further action is required . 

If any information is incorrect, TCs and HEOs should work with their BAS contact to 
submit corrections through the 2020 BAS. If boundary updates are submitted to the 
BAS by March 1, 2020, TCs and HEOs will have an additional opportunity to verify their 
government's boundary prior to final data tabulation for the 2020 Census. Changes 
received after March 1, 2020 will be used to correct the boundary, but there will not be 
sufficient time to send updated maps before final data tabulations for the 2020 Census. 

Final BVP 
The Final BVP provides an opportunity for TCs and HEOs to review recent boundary 
updates provided through the 2020 BAS. Only governments that reported corrections 
to the 2020 BAS on or before March 1, 2020 will receive Final BVP materials. The Final 
BVP materials include a Final BVP letter, form, and a paper map or map index sheet. 
The maps should reflect the legal boundary for the government effective on January 1, 
2020. TCs and HEOs are instructed to review the Census Bureau's depiction of the legal 
boundary for accuracy and to return the completed Final BVP within five (5) business 
days. 

If the boundary is correct, no further act ion is required. 

If any information is incorrect, TCs and HEOs should work with their BAS contact 
to submit corrections, within five (5) business days of receipt of materials. 

Responding with boundary updates is easy. 
The Census Bureau provides multiple free, user-friendly methods for the BAS contact 
to report boundary correc.tions through participation in BAS. 

• Paper option : Participants can request free paper maps and annotation 
materials from the BAS Web site. 

• Basic digital option: The Geographic Update Partnership Software (GUPS) 
is a free, customized Geographic Information Systems (GIS) tool. It was 
specifically developed for people who do not have geographic train ing or are 
not experienced GIS users. Please note that the GUPS option will not be 
available to report boundary updates during the Final BVP phase. 

• Advanced digital option: Experienced GIS users have the opportunity to 
download shapefiles from the BAS Web site and make updates using their 
own GIS software (e.g., ArcGIS). 

Version 7, 70/09/2079 



ReadMe 
Boundary Validation Program: ReadMe_BoundaryValidationProgram.txt 
U.S. Census Bureau 
Geography Division 

The Initial Boundary Validation Program (BVP) provides the Tribal Chair/Highest Elected Official an 
opportunity to review the Census Bureau's boundary data to ensure it is accurate prior to the tabulation 
of data for the 2020 Census. 

This Compact Disc/Digital Versatile Disc (CD/DVD) contains the maps for your government. The maps should 
reflect the legal boundary for your government effective on January 1, 2020. Please review our depiction 
of your legal boundary for accuracy using the provided maps and return the Initial BVP form found in 
your Initial BVP package. 

If the boundary is NOT correct, please work with your Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS) contact to 
submit updates through the 2020 BAS. 

The contact information for your government's BAS contact is printed on the cover letter of the Initial 
BVP package. 

The map files on this disc are in Adobe's Portable Document Format (PDF) and are designed to be viewed 
with Adobe Reader (version 6 or later). 

Adobe Reader is available free from Adobe at: https://acrobat.adobe.com/us/en/acrobat/pdf-reader.html. 

WHAT MATERIALS ARE INCLUDED ON THE CD/DVD? 

The materials you receive on the CD/DVD are outlined below: 

1. Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS) PDF maps. 
2. Readme_BoundaryValidationProgram.txt file. 
3. BVP Flyer. 

Tip for reviewing your government boundary: 

Compare the boundary from the BAS PDF maps to a local boundary data source for your government. 
Local boundary sources may include: 

1. Local plat maps. 
2. Local boundary digital data such as shapefiles or online map viewers. 

You can find additional information about the BVP and BAS at our website: 
<https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/bas/information/bvp.html> 

We encourage you to contact the Census Bureau with any questions about the Initial BVP. 

Phone: 1-800-972-5651 

Email: <geo.bas@census.gov> 

Website: <https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/bas/information/bvp.html> 

Boundary Validation Program File: ReadMe_BoundaryValidationProgram.txt 

Page 1 



Redistricting Constraints 

Districts 
New Magisterial District lines in Russell County must divide the County's population into equal 

proportions of the population. The County's total population is 28,897. 

Assuming the County maintains five Magisterial Districts, the ideal District size is 5780 (28,897 divided 

by five) . 

The Magisterial Districts must be within+ or- 5% of the ideal size. 

Ideal: 28,897 (5 Districts) 

Upper range limit (+5%): 6,069 

Lower range limit (-5%): 5,491 

Precincts 
Precincts are measured by registered voters, not by population. Precincts make up a magisterial District, 

and must be wholly contained within one District. 

The minimum size for a precinct is 100 registered voters. 

The maximum size for a precinct is 5,000 registered voters. 

Criteria 
Election district population shall be "as nearly equal as practicable." 

Election district populations shall not exceed five percent less or five percent more than the ideal district 

population. 

Election districts shall be compact and contiguous, with due regard to natural features and accessibility 

of voting places. 

Election district boundaries shall follow clearly observable boundaries. 

Election district boundaries shall be politically fair. 

Election district boundaries shall preserve communities of interest, to the maximum extent possible. 

Election district boundaries shall recognize incumbency, to the maximum extent permissible under law 

and consistent with the other criteria. 



Russell County 2011 Redistricting 

2010 2000 Difference Notes 

Total Population 28,897 29,258 -361 (Year 2000 Census Error Correction ) 

Active Voters 17,882 17,518 364 

Population Deviation from Mean of 5780 Percentage of Deviation 

District 1 6,345 565 9.78% 

District 2 5,522 -258 -4.46% 

District 3 4,956 -824 -14.26% 

District 4 5,544 -236 -4.08% 

District 5 6,530 750 12.98% 

Total Population 28,897 

Precinct Population Precinct Population 

Moccasin 2,349 East Lebanon 2,926 

Copper Creek 1,830 West Lebanon 3,604 

South Castlewood 2,166 

North Castlewood 2,957 

Dante 1,013 

Cleveland 1,552 

Cooks Mill 683 

Daughterty 219 

Honaker 4,054 

Drill 327 

Swords Creek 2,793 

Elk Garden 2,424 



FORM C.·650 (1H9-2018) OMB. No. 0607-1003: Approval Expires 02/28/2021 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Economics and Statistics Administration 
U.S. CENSUS BUREAU census-

2020 
2020 Census Participant Statistical Areas 

Program (PSAP) 
Quick Reference: Census Tracts 

Census tracts are relatively permanent geographic divisions of a county or county equivalent. The purpose of the 
census tract is to provide a set of nationally consistent, relatively small statistical units, with stable boundaries, that 
facilitate analysis of data across time. The U.S. Census Bureau prioritizes the comparability of census tracts from 
decade to decade. Therefore, we request that you do not change the outer boundaries of any census tracts when 
making census tract updates, unless it is a correction due to boundary or feature inaccuracy. The Census Bureau uses 
census tracts in the tabulation and presentation of data from the decennial census and the American Community Survey 
(ACS). 

Census Bureau criteria specify that census tracts must: 
• Nest within county boundaries. 
• Cover the entire land and water area of the county. 
• Be reasonably compact and contiguous. 
• Meet the population/housing unit thresholds as specified in Table 1. For counties that have fewer than 1,200 residents, 

the Census Bureau will define one census tract that encompasses the entirety of the county. 

• Have census tract codes ranging from 1 to 9989 that must be unique within each county. Special use tract codes must 
range from 9800 to 9899. The acceptable range of census tract suffixes for split census tracts is from .01 to .98. 

Census Bureau guidelines recommend that census tracts: 
•Have boundaries that follow visible features (e.g., roads, rivers) or other acceptable features (e.g., tribal reservation, 

tribal subdivision, incorporated place, and minor civil division boundaries). 
• Be merged when census tracts are below the minimum population (1,200) or housing unit (480) count with adjacent 

census tracts. Participants should split any census tracts above maximum population (8,000) or housing unit (3,200) 
counts into multiple census tracts. When revising tracts, participants should aim to meet or exceed the optimum 
population (4,000) or housing unit (1,600) thresholds to increase the reliability of sample data for census tracts. 

Table 1: Census Tract Thresholds 

Census Tract Type 
Threshold Optimum Minimum Maximum Type 

Population 4,000 1,200 8,000 
Standard Census Tracts 

Housing Unit 1,600 480 3,200 

Special Use Census 
At least comparable Tracts 

Area measurement in size to surrounding 

(Encompassing an census tracts 

employment center, large 
airport, park, forest, or 
large water body with no 
(or very little) population 
or housing units) Employment Suggested minimum of 1,200 workers or jobs 

Refer to the Respondent Guide for complete instructions. 



FORM G 0 640 (11,19-2018) OMB. No. 0607-1003: Approval Expires 02/28/2021 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Economics and Statistics Administration 
U.S. CENSUS BUREAU 

2020 Census Participant Statistical Areas 
Program (PSAP) 

Quick Reference: Block Groups 

A block group is a statistical geographic subdivision of a census tract. Local participants are provided an opportunity to 
review and if necessary, suggest updates to the boundaries and attributes of the block groups in their geographic area 
through the 2020 Census PSAP. The U.S. Census Bureau uses block groups in the tabulation and presentation of data 
from the decennial census and the American Community Survey (ACS). 

Census Bureau criteria specify that standard block groups must: 

• Nest within census tract boundaries. 
• Cover the entire land and water area of each census tract. 

• Be reasonably compact and contiguous. 
• Meet the population and/or housing unit thresholds as specified in Table 1. For counties that have fewer than 1,200 

residents, the Census Bureau will define one census tract and one block group that encompasses the entirety of the 
county. 

•Have no more than nine block groups (excluding water blocks) contained within a single census tract. 

•Have a unique code, between O and 10, within each census tract. To identify each standard block group, a single-digit 
code is used that will correspond to the first digit in the code of each block encompassed by the block group (e.g., all 
blocks within block group 3 will be numbered in the 3000 range). A zero is to be used to denote a water-only block 
group. 

Census Bureau guidelines recommend that standard block groups: 
•Have boundaries that follow visible features (e.g., roads, rivers) or other acceptable features (e.g., incorporated place, 

minor civil division, and American Indian reservation boundaries). 
•Be delineated as a special use block group if coextensive with a special use census tract, encompassing an 

employment center, large airport, public park, public forest, or large water body with no (or very little) population or 
housing units. 

Table 1: Block Group Thresholds 

Block Group Type 
Population Housing Unit Area Measurement 
Threshold Threshold Threshold 

Min.: 600 Min.: 240 None 

Standard Block 
Groups Max.: 3,000 Max.: 1,200 None 

None (or very little) or None (or very little) or At least comparable 
Special Use Block within the standard within the standard in land area size to 

Groups block group thresholds block group thresholds surrounding block groups 

Refer to the Respondent Guide for complete instructions. 



..__ : •••• : ~'MIU l1(UllVATIJN!TAllHJ 

c;::;..'t:;- .. ~ Tlllll 

~0~- lt-t-town414(.0 

=p.-ri- • •• ••• lt!muCCD~l(ISO 

00000000 

C.-~.-1-• :···· ····: 
•i.»I'" : •••••••• : 

.--

MJtronn .;;~.on 

Davit llU OO 

= 1- ·-· I 
e:;:;:;:;~ 

c~~~·::::; 

==-~ 
'C'-'..""::.o:J 

~ 

~-- ~ 
I ·-··· I 
1-w·· i 

~--~ I·-· I 
1--~ I 

... __ _,·""""' \ICS><'Cll-,-U. .. _._ .. 

::"Z..:::::.i~..6'=-.!::..."=.~Z.:.---......... ______ ,~ 
~-::.:.--.i""'--~-"-·-----
,.,,..-... ~·~l.ll:D.Tlo.·-··..._ ___ ..ir. 
·=-.:-:.~------;,.i .... _ _.,. ... __ .,... 
J~,....._ .... __ .... ___ ........... . 
!:::::.'='='.:;::::... 
~"'::"~iZl':.'::i:'7"-"t..~-_,,...,_.,._._ 



Russell County, Virginia 

Legend 

c:::J 2010 Tracts 

c:::J 2010 Block Groups 

1st Number - Tract or Block Group Number 
2nd Number = Population 
3rd Number - Households 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



Russell County, Virginia 

Legend 

CJ Proposed 2020 Tracts 

CJ Proposed 2020 Block Groups 

1st Number - Tract or Block Group Number 
2nd Number = Population 
3rd Number - Households 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



STATEFP COUNTYFP TRACTCE BLKGRPCE BLKGRPID BGTYP 

51 167 030201 1 511670302011 
51 167 030201 2 511670302012 
51 167 030201 3 511670302013 
51 167 030201 4 511670302014 
51 167 030202 1 511670302021 
51 167 030202 2 511670302022 
51 167 030403 1 511670304031 
51 167 030403 2 511670304032 
51 167 030403 3 511670304033 
51 167 030403 4 511670304034 
51 167 030404 1 511670304041 
51 167 030404 2 511670304042 



STATEFP COUNTYFP TRACTCE TRACTTYP 

51 167 030201 

51 
51 

51 

167 
167 

167 

030202 
030403 

030404 





                        Board of Supervisors       January 13, 2020 

Russell County Page 1 
 

 

RUSSELL COUNTY 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S BUDGET MEETINGS 
 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 BUDGET MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
 
Date  Activity         
 
 
01/27/20 Letter of Budget Requests to Departments, Offices, & Agencies 
 
02/17/20 Dead-line for Departmental Budget Requests 
 
03/13/20 Budget Expenditures Compiled 
 
03/13/20 Revenue Projections Compiled 
 
03/18/20 Budget Committee Workshop 
 
03/25/20 Budget Committee Workshop 
 
04/06/20 Full Board of Supervisors Budget Work Session 
 
04/13/20 Advertise Public Hearing for Budget and Tax Rates  
 
04/17/20    Advertise Public Hearing for Budget and Tax Rates 
 
05/04/20 Hold Public Hearing on FY 2020/2021 Budget and Tax Rates 
 
06/01/20 Approve Budget at Regular June Meeting 
 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight







  

 

  
 

 

1 

ADMINISTRATIVE AGREEMENT 

Belfast Waterline Extension Project, Phase II 

 

 This Agreement entered into this 2nd of March, 2020 by and between the Cumberland 

Plateau Planning District Commission, hereinafter referred to as the "PDC," and Russell County 

Board of Supervisors, hereinafter referred to as the "Grantee." 

 WITNESSETH 
 WHEREAS, the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, amended in 1981, 

provides for federal grant funds to states to assist local governmental units to deal with local 

community development related problems; and 

 WHEREAS, the Grantee is authorized to obtain federal grant assistance made available 

under the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended 

in 1981; and  

 WHEREAS, the PDC is authorized by Chapter 42 of Title 15.2 Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, to assist local governmental units in planning their development; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee has agreed the installation of Belfast Waterline Extension Project, Phase 
II will improve the lives of the residents by providing clean, safe potable water.  
 

 NOW THEREFORE, the PDC and Grantee hereto do mutually agree as follows:  
 

I. Scope of Work Required of PDC 

 The PDC agrees to provide technical assistance to the Grantee related to the 

administration of the Community Development Block Grant, hereinafter referred to as "CDBG," 

offered by the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development, hereinafter referred 

to as "DHCD," and to do so in accordance with all terms and conditions set forth in this agreement 

to the satisfaction of DHCD. 

  The PDC will carry out its scope of work by working in conjunction with the Grantee in 

compliance with the assurances set forth in the application and in compliance with the conditions 

set forth in the Grant Agreement executed between the Grantee and DHCD. 

 

 

 

 



  

 

  
 

 

2 

II. Time of PDC Performance 
 

 The PDC agrees to complete performance activities called for herein by the date of final 

closeout of the project. 

III. Duties and Responsibilities of the PDC 
  The PDC agrees to do the following administrative technical assistance activities: 

 

1. General Coordination – The PDC will provide assistance to the Grantee in 

completing the pre-contact activities as discussed during contract negotiations as soon 

as possible.  The PDC will provide coordination and administration of the project by 

working as a liaison between the Grantee, engineer, contractor, DHCD and all other 

funding agencies.  The PDC will assist the Grantee in the preparation of 

correspondence relating to the implementation of the project. 

2. Financial Record Keeping - The PDC will assist the Grantee in maintaining 

accurate records of the financial expenditures of the CDBG monies in this project.   All 

requests for payment will require authorization for payment by the Grantee. The PDC 

will prepare all draw downs for the Grantee’s submission to DHCD. Following 

submission the PDC will distribute full drawdown packets back to the Grantee and the 

Russell County PSA and keep financial files in order with support invoices, EDI 

statements, bank statements and check copies for future compliance reviews.  The 

PDC will prepare monitoring spreadsheets for compliance showing allocation of funds 

to approved budget line items.  The PDC will track all expenditures of leverage funds in 

regard to the project.  The PDC will assist the Grantee in preparing and requesting 

budget revisions.  The PDC will assist the Grantee in determining eligible budget 

expenses for the project activities and assist the Grantee with budget monitoring. 

3. Project Management Plan - The PDC will assist the Grantee with the preparation 

of the Project Management Plan and any revisions and updates of the Plan.  The PDC 

will conduct monthly Management Team Meetings to meet all tasks according to 

identified timelines.  Revised Project Management Plans and minutes will be forwarded 

monthly to parties involved.  Monthly and annual updates of project progress to will be 

sent to DHCD. 

4. General Record Keeping - The PDC will be responsible for setting up the files 

associated with the CDBG related activities of the project in accordance with the 



  

 

  
 

 

3 

guidelines set forth in the Community Improvement Grant Manual.  All items required 

will be kept in appropriate files for future compliance reviews by DHCD. Specifically, the 

PDC will provide initial response to all CDBG related correspondence and identify 

proper location of all correspondence in the project files. 

5. Reporting - The PDC will prepare all reports required by DHCD in conformance to 

the Grantee's implementation of the CDBG contract requirements. These will include, 

but not necessarily be limited to, the annual status reports, the monthly status reports to 

the Community Development Specialist, the various compliance and closeout 

documents required including, but not limited to, a final financial report, a final 

construction report, and a final evaluation report.  In the event the PDC chooses to use 

subcontractors during the course of its work, all payments to the subcontractors will be 

the exclusive responsibility of the PDC. 

6. Compliance - The PDC will act as the Compliance Officer for the project for labor 

standards, equal employment opportunities, Section 3 compliance, and environmental 

regulations. In terms of labor standards, the PDC will verify the appropriate Davis-

Bacon wage rates by conducting periodic contractor employee interviews and review 

payrolls from all contractors on a weekly basis to coordinate all information between the 

payroll sheets, Monthly Register of Assigned Employees and Employee Interview 

Sheets. The PDC will advise the Grantee of all compliance requirements regarding 

Equal Employment Opportunities and Section 3 requirements. The PDC will verify that 

the engineer has included all necessary compliance statements to be met by the 

contractor as part of the bid documents. The PDC will further verify that the engineer 

has prepared and performed all actions necessary to assure compliance to all 

applicable environmental legislation and regulations, and provide assurance to the 

Grantee that the project has received approval from the regulatory agency stating that 

the project has been designed by the engineer specifically as proposed in the CDBG 

and other funding contracts.  The PDC will attend the pre-construction conference for 

construction related tasks and review the Labor Standards, Equal Opportunity, and 

Section 3 requirements with the contractors.  The PDC will attend the Bid Opening for 

construction for the project and will attend Progress Meetings with the Grantee, 

engineer and contractors. 

7. Procurement - The PDC will advise and assist the Grantee in adhering to state 

and/or federal procurement legislation and regulations.  



  

 

  
 

 

4 

8. Final close out – The PDC will prepare and submit all final reports required to 

close out the CDBG grant. 

9. Subcontracting - The PDC reserves the right to subcontract any tasks required in 

meeting the foregoing responsibilities. 

 IV. Duties and Responsibilities of the Grantee 

   The Grantee agrees to perform the following administrative activities: 

  1. Financial Record Keeping - The Grantee will maintain accurate records of the 

financial expenditures of the CDBG monies in this project and all other funding sources for 

the project listed as project leverage. 

   2.  General Record Keeping - The Grantee will assist the PDC in maintaining 

accurate project files. All incoming correspondence directly and indirectly relating to the 

project will be opened and read by the Grantee and forwarded to the PDC for review. The 

Grantee will promptly notify the PDC of any correspondence that appears to need 

immediate action. All files, records, documentation and correspondence associated with 

this project shall be housed with the Grantee, with appropriate copies of said documents 

housed with the PDC. 

 V. Method of Payment 
   Grantee agrees to pay the PDC cash consideration not to exceed fifty thousand 

dollars ($50,000), which constitutes full and complete payment for the PDC's work and activities 

as set forth herein. Such sum will be paid in the following manner, in every case subject to receipt 

of the PDC's requisition for payment.  It is understood that the payments to the PDC will be made 

according to the eligible performance thresholds. 

  In the event management work would be required past the time the all available 

management funds have been expensed, the PDC would complete management of the project 

until the final closeout of the project. 

 

 Performance thresholds agreed upon are as follows: 

Threshold            %    Amount      Cum % Cum Amount  

Execution of DHCD Contract  
10% 5,000 

10% $5,000 

Construction Contract Award 10% 5,000 20% $10,000 

 Monthly Mgmt Team Meetings – Contract 
Monitoring  10% 5,000 

30% $15,000 



  

 

  
 

 

5 

Construction Complete - Labor standards 
  
 

25% 12,500 55% $27,500 

Satisfactory Compliance Reviews – 
Approx 2 @ $1,750 each 25% 12,500 

80% $40,000 

Achievement of Benefits 10% 5,000 90% $45,000 

Administrative Closeout 10% 5,000 100% $50,000 
 

 
VI.  Amendment 
   This contract may be amended from time to time by written authorization of the 

PDC and the Grantee and shall be subject to re-negotiation if such amendment results in a change 

in the scope of services, compensation and method of payment. However, in no case may the 

contract be amended without the expressed written authorization of the DHCD. 

 

Witness the following signatures and seals as of the date first above written: 

 
 Seal:  Cumberland Plateau Planning District Commission 
 
 
   By __________________________________ 
    Executive Director 
 
Commonwealth of Virginia 

 County of ___________________, To-Wit: 

  The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me 

 this _______ day of ________________, 2020 

My commission expires: ___________     

             ____________________________ 

       Notary Public 

 
 
 Seal:  Russell County Board of Supervisors 
 



  

 

  
 

 

6 

 
   By __________________________________ 
               Russell County Administrator  
 
  

 

 Commonwealth of Virginia 

 County of ___________________, To-Wit: 

   The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me  

            this____ ___day of ________________, 2020, by __________________ 

 

My commission expires _____________           ___________________________ 

       Notary Public   



Agreement 
 

 This Agreement entered into this 2nd day of March 2020, by and between the 
Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia, (hereinafter referred to as Russell 
County), and the Russell County Public Service Authority (hereinafter referred to as 
PSA). 
 

Witnesseth 
 

 WHEREAS, Russell County has been approved by the Virginia Department of 
Housing and Community Development (VDHCD) to receive Virginia Community 
Development Block Grants (VCDBG) in accordance with grant applications submitted by 
Russell County in order to construct water lines located in the Belfast Waterline 
Extension Project, Phase II (hereinafter referred to as the Water Project); and 
 
 WHEREAS, under the regulations of the VDHCD the County is the only legal 
entity which is permitted to enter into a contract for the receipt of the grant funds in order 
to implement the Grant; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is appropriate and proper for the legal entity, which is the recipient 
of the grant to enter into a contractual agreement with another agency to own and operate 
the systems for which the said funds are being distributed to the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the PSA is the official public entity created pursuant to Section 15.1-
1241 et. Seq. of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended, which has been delegated the 
responsibility for all matters related to water Project in Russell County, Virginia; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the PSA will accept ownership and operation of said system, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has formally agreed to obtain and provide all additional 
funding required in order to complete the Water Project being that amount of funding by 
which the total cost of the Water Project exceeds the amount of the VCDBG funding. 
 
 NOW, THERFORE, for good and valuable consideration, including the mutual 
exchange of promises by the between the parties, Russell County and the PSA do hereby 
mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. Russell County agrees to accept VCDBG grant. 
 

2. Russell County agrees to enter into the necessary Agreement with DHCD to 
make all to the assurances required in the contract documents which are 
incorporated as part of the Agreement the County must sign in order to 
implement the VCDBG and receive the grant funds. 

 



3. PSA hereby formally agrees that it will own and operate water systems which 
Russell County constructs with CDBG monies. 

 
4. Russell County agrees to make draw downs in accordance with the VDHCD 

regulations not to exceed the amount of the approved VCDBG grant. 
 

5. No request for a draw down on grant funds will be made by Russell County 
unless complete and accurate progress and financial reports satisfactory to 
Russell County indicating the nature of work or activity covered by this request, 
have been submitted by its contractors and engineers and are certified as being 
true and accurate by the official representative of the contractors and engineers. 

 
6. Russell County agrees to appropriate funds not to exceed the amount of the 

VCDBG monies.  Such appropriations shall only be made after receipt of grant 
funds by Russell County through the Virginia Department of Housing and 
Community Development. 

 
7. Russell County, agrees to obtain and provide the necessary matching share funds 

required to complete the Water Project being the difference of the Water Project 
and the County CDBG grant. 

 
8. The county shall initiate the activities required by the contract documents 

beginning as soon as the VCDBG contract is executed. 
 

9. The county shall complete the work as described in the contract documents in 
compliance with the implementation schedule submitted to VDHCD. 

 
10. The county hereby agrees to carry out all of the terms of the Agreement entered 

into by and between Russell County and the VDHCD including all of the General 
Conditions, Special Conditions, and Assurances made a part of the contract 
documents listed heretofore which are incorporated by reference in this 
Agreement, as if set out in full. 

 
11. The county hereby agrees to properly administer the VDHCD through the 

VDHCD for the Water Project in accordance with all applicable federal, state 
county laws.  The county also agrees to comply with any and all regulations and 
restrictions to the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development 
in the administration of the VCDBG and in the construction phase of the Water 
Project.  It is agreed by and between the parties that any and all financial, 
administrative and other records required to be maintained in conjunction with 
this project by an applicable regulation or agreement will be prepared and 
maintained by the county through the CPPDC.  The county shall be responsible 
for all fiscal accounting responsibility in accordance with the disbursement of 
funds under all of the VCDBG, together with the preparation and filing of any 
and all reports necessary for processing and implementation of the VCDBG and 
for the obtaining of the draw down of funds for the Water Project.  Russell 



County agrees to receive and review progress and financial reports before 
requesting a draw down of Block Grant funds, with administrative assistance 
from the CPPDC. 

 
12. The county agrees to ensure that all construction work performed in connection 

with the Water Project complies with all applicable laws as outlined in the 
VDHCD Grant Management Manual and is accomplished in a professional and 
work workmanlike manner.  It is hereby agreed by and between the parties that 
the county will be responsible for ensuring that all work performed on the Water 
performed on the Water Project is in compliance with the terms of the VDHCD-
VCDBG grant and any and all specifications of the these funding agencies. 

 
13. The parties agree that the county is fully responsible for all purchasing, bidding 

and contracting in connection with the Water Project and is responsible for 
complying with all applicable Federal, State and County procurement laws and 
bidding procedures as outlined in the VDHCD Grant Management Manual.  
Their engineer and or administrative assistant will assist the county in these 
efforts. 

 
14.  PSA agrees to save and hold harmless Russell County, the Board of Supervisors 

of Russell County, and its officers, agents, and employees from any and all 
liability, claim, suits, judgments and recoveries of whatsoever nature which may 
arise in connection with the administration of the VCDBG for the Water Project 
and the construction work performed on the project. 

 
15. In executing this Agreement, it is the intention of the parties that the PSA shall 

own and operate the water systems on behalf of the county.  The county will be 
fully responsible for procuring and performance of all the engineering, 
construction, administration and related work on the Water Project in accordance 
with the plans, specifications, engineering studies of the grant application and all 
other VCDBG contract documents as heretofore specified.  The county shall bear 
the full responsibility for auditing its records of expenditures and disbursement of 
all funds in connection with the Water Project.  Russell County is responsible for 
the audit of its financial records relating to the receipt and disbursement of the 
VCDBG and other funds. 

 
16. The parties agree that the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, its agents, 

officers, and employees shall not be liable for PSA’s default, negligence, neglect, 
malfeasance, failure to properly account for funds, failure to comply with federal, 
state, or local laws, or any failure of the PSA to comply with the terms of the 
VCDBG, or any provisions of the contract documents heretofore enumerated in 
conjunction with the Water Project. 

 
17. Furthermore, upon completion of said construction the PSA will assume 

ownership and responsibility of system and agrees to operate and maintain the 
water facilities completed under this grant as a part of its regular operations. 



 
18. This Agreement may be amended from time to time only by written authorization 

of both parties, executed with the same formality as this Agreement. 
 

19. This Agreement comports in all respects with the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their signatures and seal this 2nd  
day of March 2020. 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Rebecca Dye, Chairman 
      Board of Supervisors of 
      Russell County, Virginia. 
 
 
            
      _________________________________ 
      Harvey Hart, Executive Director   
      Russell County Public Service Authority 
 
STATE OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF RUSSELL 
 

Personally, appeared before me in the County and State aforesaid this 2nd  
 

day of March 2020, Rebecca Dye, and acknowledged this foregoing Agreement as this 
truce act  
 
and deed. 
         
 
      _________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 
 
 My Commission expires: ________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF RUSSELL 
 
   Personally appeared before me in the County and State aforesaid this _______  

 
day of 2nd, 2020, Harvey Hart, and acknowledged this foregoing  



 
Agreement as this truce act and deed. 

 
_________________________________ 

      Notary Public 
 
 
 My Commission expires: ________________________ 
 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

 WHEREAS, Russell County, Virginia has been obligated, contingent on certain 

conditions, $630,000 from the Virginia Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Program for the Belfast Waterline Extension, Phase 2; and  

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County hereby appropriates the 

sum of $630,000 to this project contingent on receiving the funds from the Virginia 

Department of Housing and Community Development. 

 
 This ___ day of __________, 2020. 
 

____________________________________ 
Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 

  Board of Supervisors 
  County of Russell  

      












































































































	Aknowledgements.pdf
	Meeting:   3/2/20         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 3/2/20           6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Board Appointments.pdf
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 3/2/20               6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Participation Agreement for Project Grow (Draft 2).pdf
	W I T N E S S E T H
	ARTICLE II:  PARTICIPANT CONTRIBUTION
	ARTICLE  IX:  MODIFICATION
	This Participation Agreement may only be modified by a writing approved by all Participants' respective governing bodies, by vote at a public meeting evidenced by a certified copy of a written resolution of each Participant's governing body.
	ARTICLE  X:  WITHDRAWAL AS A PARTICIPATING JUSRIDICTION

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 3/2/20         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	DHCD Admin Contract.pdf
	WITNESSETH




